
 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 

 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

  

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Resolution required to add late items, if any 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

- Resolution to adopt the Agenda for the November 10, 

2020, Regular Meeting. 

 

MINUTES: 

 

- Resolution to adopt the Minutes of the October 27, 

2020, Regular Meeting 

 

 - Resolution to adopt the Minutes of the October 30, 

2020, Committee of the Whole Meeting 

 

PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS: 

 

  

Arrow Slocan Tourism Association – 

Megan Chadwick, Executive Director 

 

- Update on ASTA Activities 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS & 

COMMENTS: 

 

-  

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

- Nil 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR 

INFORMATION: 

 

- Resolution to receive the following items for 

information: 

• Update on Slocan Lake "Application Only 

Area" (Slocan Lake Stewardship Society - Sally 
Hammond, Director) 

• Notice of Grant Funding (CBT - Will Nixon, 
Senior Manager Delivery of Benefits) 

• COVID-19 Safe Restart Grants for Local 

Governments (Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing - Kaye Krishna, Deputy Minister) 

 

STAFF REPORTS: 

 

- Resolution to receive the following items for 

information: 

• Kyowakai Book Project Update 

• Expression of Interest - CBT Community 

Wildfire Innovation Grant 

 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

  

Verbal Reports 

 

-  

1



2



Village of New Denver  Agenda – November 10, 2020 Regular Meeting 

PAGE 2 OF 3 

 

Regional District of Central Kootenay 

 

-  

West Kootenay Boundary Regional 

Hospital District 

 

-  

Recreation Commission #6 

 

-  

Economic Development Commission 

 

-  

Rosebery Parklands & Trail Commission 

 

-  

Treaty Advisory Committee 

 

-  

Fire Department Committee 

 

-  

Health Advisory Committee 

 

-  

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

 

- Draft Minutes - November 2, 2020 Meeting 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

RDCK - Angela Lund, Deputy Corporate 

Officer 

 

- Recreation Commission #6 Appointments 

 - Sustainability Advisory Committee Terms of 

Reference 

 

 - West Kootenay EcoSociety 100% Renewable Energy 

Plan 

 

 - Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020 

 

MOTION TO EXCLUDE: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that the 

public interest requires that, as per section 90(1) (a) 

of the Community Charter, persons other than 

members of Council and the CAO be excluded from 

the meeting as it pertains to personnel matters. 

 

RECONVENE IN CAMERA: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Council recess and reconvene in camera at _____ 

p.m. 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN MEETING: 

 

  

3



4



Village of New Denver  Agenda – November 10, 2020 Regular Meeting 

PAGE 3 OF 3 

 

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Council reconvene in open meeting at _____ p.m. 

 

RESOLUTIONS BROUGHT 

FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Resolution#_____ be brought forward to the public 

portion of the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

  

 - Resolution to adjourn the meeting at ___ p.m. 

 

 

5



6



 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  October 21, 2020 

TIME:  7:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Council Chambers 

 

 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

PRESENT: 

 

- Mayor Leonard Casley 

Councillor John Fyke 

Councillor Vern Gustafson 

Councillor Colin Moss 

Councillor Gerald Wagner 

Catherine Allaway, CAO 

Press:  Valley Voice 

Guests: Nil 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

- Mayor Casley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Nil 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #226 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

agenda for the October 27, 2020 Regular Meeting be 

adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

MINUTES: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #227 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

Minutes of the October 13, 2020 Regular Meeting be 

adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #228 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

Minutes of the October 21, 2020 Special Meeting be 

adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

 

PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS: 

 

- Nil 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS & COMMENTS: 

 

- Nil 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

- Nil 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR 

INFORMATION: 

 

- Nil 

STAFF REPORTS: 

 

- Nil 

7



Village of New Denver  Minutes – October 27, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 

PAGE 2 OF 3 

 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

  

Verbal Reports - Councillor Moss reported on his discussions with 

recycling depot staff about service delivery locally 

 

 - Councillor Gustafson reported on his observations 

regarding the bridge repairs currently underway 

 

 - Councillor Wagner reported that he has been looking 

at options for holiday light decorations 

 

Regional District of Central Kootenay 

 

- Councillor Moss reported on RDCK affairs 

West Kootenay Boundary Regional 

Hospital District 

 

- Councillor Moss reported on WKBRHD affairs 

Recreation Commission #6 

 

- Nil 

Economic Development Commission 

 

-  

Rosebery Trails & Parklands 

Commission 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for November 5, 2020 

Treaty Advisory Committee 

 

- Nil 

Fire Department Committee 

 

- Nil 

Health Advisory Committee 

 

- Nil 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

Councillor Wagner declared a conflict of interest in the matter at hand and absented himself from the 

discussion at 7:24 p.m. as he is a Director of the North Slocan Trails Society. 

 

RESOLUTION #229 

All Wheels Skills Park Proposal – 

Request for Support in Principle (North 
Slocan Trails Society – Bryn Perry, Carl 
Jacks, Gerald Wagner and Abi Marsh, 
Subcommittee Members) 
 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

Village of New Denver provide the North Slocan 

Trails Society with a letter of support in principle for 

the New Denver All Wheels Park Proposal. 

CARRIED 

 

Councillor Wagner returned to the meeting at 7:29 p.m. 

 

RESOLUTION #230 

Community Economic Recovery 

Infrastructure Program (CERIP) Grant 

Application – Nikkei Internment 

Memorial Centre  

 

- Moved by Councillor Gustafson and seconded that the 

Village of New Denver submit a grant application to 

the Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure 

Program’s Unique Heritage Infrastructure stream for 

funding improvements to the Nikkei Internment 

Memorial Centre. 

8



Village of New Denver  Minutes – October 27, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 

PAGE 3 OF 3 

 

CARRIED 

 

Councillor Moss declared a conflict of interest in the matter at hand and absented himself from the 

discussion at 7:32 p.m. as he is a Director of the Slocan Valley Chamber of Commerce. 

 

RESOLUTION #231 

Request for reinstatement of annual grant 

(Slocan Valley Chamber of Commerce – 
Jan McMurray, President) 
 

- 
Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

request for ongoing Grant-in-Aid assistance be 

referred to 2021 budget deliberations. 

CARRIED 

 

Councillor Moss returned to the meeting at 7:41 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #232 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:41 p.m.  

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

MAYOR CASLEY  CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

9



 

MINUTES 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

DATE:  October 30, 2020 

TIME:  9:00 a.m. 

PLACE: Council Chambers 

 

 

PAGE 1 OF 1 

PRESENT: 

 

- Mayor Leonard Casley  

Councillor John Fyke 

Councillor Vern Gustafson 

Councillor Colin Moss 

Councillor Gerald Wagner 

Catherine Allaway, CAO 

Jason Chernoff, Equipment Operator (9:00-9:30) 

Press:  Nil  

Guests: RCMP Cpl. Jamie Moffat & Cst. Matthew 

Jones (11:00-11:55) 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

- Mayor Casley called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Nil 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #233 

 

- Moved by Councillor Gustafson and seconded that the 

agenda for the October 30, 2020 Committee of the 

Whole Meeting be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

Committee of the Whole Discussion - Council discussed the Healthy Community Society’s 

organics diversion pilot project 

 

 - Council discussed decorating main street with holiday 

lights. Up to $500 is available this year, and more 

extensive plans can be developed in 2021. 

  

 - Council discussed the concerns of the Chamber of 

Commerce regarding the limited hours at KSCU 

 

 - Council discussed the results of the recent provincial 

election. 

 

 - Council met with the RCMP and discussed local 

concerns including speeding and loud vehicles and 

drugs. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

  

10



Village of New Denver  Minutes – October 30, 2020 Committee of the Whole Meeting 

 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

RESOLUTION #234 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that the 

meeting be adjourned at 11:55 a.m.  

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

MAYOR CASLEY  CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

 

11



   Arrow Slocan Tourism – New Denver Council Presentation 
 

November 10, 2020 

 
Topics for Presentation: 
 

• Who is Arrow Slocan Tourism? • Projects 

• What is a DMO? • Branding 

• Strategic Plan and Objectives • Website 

• Funding  • Social Media 

• Our Board • Collaboration 
 
Looking forward to your questions after the presentation. 
 
 
Key Points: 
 

• Arrow Slocan Tourism is a Destination Marketing Organization (DMO) and non-profit society. Our primary 
task is regional marketing to potential visitors. 

• Our mandate is to, through effective marketing, support local businesses and communities to maximize 
the economic benefits that flow from regional visitation. 

• We are looking to attract those visitors that come here for what the region naturally holds, rather to sell an 
experience that does not fit with the local lifestyle. 

• As a DMO, we are part of the DMO framework that spans British Columbia, Canada and extends globally. 
This creates powerful marketing potential. It allows for far reaching, coordinated and effective promotion 
to potential visitors not accessed by typical local efforts.  

• Arrow Slocan is the last DMO to be formed in BC, with almost every part of BC already benefiting from 
the support of the DMO program – some as far back as 1987. 

• Arrow Slocan Tourism is funded through a combination of provincial grants and a 2% tax on guests’ 
purchase of accommodation in our designated region via the Municipal and Regional District Tax 
(MRDT). It no longer costs local governments or communities money to undertake marketing and 
promotion to visitors.  

• Our Board is a non-working policy Board. Directors focus input into annual strategic planning and policy 
development to guide operational direction. The Board’s work helps ensure the organization moves 
forward with developing the kind of tourism that works for our region. 

• Current organizational focus is on building the marketing assets needed to reach potential visitors and tie 
into the provincial and national DMO framework more readily. These assets will be used to undertake 
collaborative marketing projects with local businesses, but also in alliance with Kootenay Rockies 
Tourism, Destination BC, Destination Canada and other DMO’s. 

• Our regional branding is now complete, social media channels are being built out further each day and 
the regional website in under development. 

• Looking forward to further input from businesses, local governments and stakeholders as we move 
forward. 

 

Contact Information:  

Megan Chadwick 

250-265-7144  

info@arrowslocan.com 

12



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Corporate Officer 

SUBJECT:  Communications for Information 

DATE:  November 6, 2020 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the following correspondence be received for information: 

• Update on Slocan Lake "Application Only Area" (Slocan Lake Stewardship Society - Sally 
Hammond, Director) 

• Notice of Grant Funding (CBT - Will Nixon, Senior Manager Delivery of Benefits) 
• COVID-19 Safe Restart Grants for Local Governments (Ministry of Municipal Affairs and 

Housing - Kaye Krishna, Deputy Minister) 

13



1

Catherine Allaway

From: Sally Hammond 
Sent: October 30, 2020 4:57 PM
To: Hillary Elliott; Michelle Gordon; Catherine Allaway; Walter Popoff
Subject: Thank you for your contribution.
Attachments: Signature no address.jpg; Untitled attachment 00028.html; image001.png; Untitled attachment 

00031.html; 4405906 - NOI..pdf; Untitled attachment 00034.html

Hello all, 
 
Your offices each provided the Slocan Lake Stewardship Society with a letter of support to accompany our 2017 application 
to FLNRORD for 'Application Only Area' status for the crown land at the mouth of Shannon Creek.  Our application was 
inspired by the RAVEs that had taken place in that spot two years in a row.  There were well over 150 people, with sound 
equipment, being ferried across the lake by boat to camp on a small area of beach, with the ensuing foreshore and riparian 
disturbance, cutting of trees, bonfires, 130 vehicles parked at the Girl Guide Camp and the  disturbance of wildlife (including 
nearby residents) by high sound volume and lights. 
 
The below notice from FLNRORD informs us that we finally got the designation for that area that we were hoping for.  This 
means that if anyone wants to stage a music event (i.e. RAVE), using the crown land in the area marked on the map 
attached, they must submit a proposal to Front Counter BC and then advertise the proposal in the local newspapers so that 
Slocan Lake residents can provide feedback to Front Counter BC on the proposal.  If there are sufficient objections, Front 
Counter BC would turn down the proposed music event. 
 
I thank you for your part in this small, but important, achievement which allows Slocan Lake residents to 'have a say'. 
 
All best,  Sally Hammond for the SLSS Board of Directors     

14



1

Catherine Allaway

From: Will Nixon - Columbia Basin Trust <communications@ourtrust.org>
Sent: November 2, 2020 3:39 PM
To: Catherine Allaway
Subject: Community Outdoor Revitalization Grants Now Open

 

 

Enhance Your Community Space 
 

 

 

 

 

Hello Catherine, 

Earlier this fall we opened our Community Outdoor Revitalization Grants. We would 
like to ensure you received the notification and remind you about the deadline, 
February 5, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. Pacific / 3:00 p.m. Mountain.  

These grants support Basin communities to restore or enhance welcoming, safe and 
vibrant outdoor multi-use community spaces that support community gathering and 
programming. 

New for this intake, the Trust has increased the maximum request for funding for 
Capital Grants to $650,000. In addition, applications from non-profit organizations from 
unincorporated communities will be considered provided the criteria outlined in the 
guidelines is met. 

Project Planning and Design Grants are also available to municipalities with 
populations of 5,000 or less, unincorporated areas, and First Nations communities to 
plan and design these types of spaces in more rural contexts. Applications are 
accepted for planning grants on an ongoing basis, until all program funds are 
committed. 

Learn more at ourtrust.org/corgrants.  

Sincerely, 
 

 

 

 

  

15



2

Will Nixon 
Senior Manager, Delivery of Benefits 
Columbia Basin Trust 
  

 

 

 

New Upgrades to 
Slocan's Waterfront 
 

  

Outdoor projects 
moving forward
 

  

Outdoor gathering 
spaces enhanced  
 

 

 

 

   
 

  

 

 
ourtrust.org | 1.800.505.8998

 

   

 

  

 
This email is intended for corporate@newdenver.ca. 
Update your preferences or Unsubscribe 
 

 
 

16



 

 
 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing 
 

 
Office of the 
Deputy Minister 

 
Mailing Address: 
PO Box 9490 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC  V8W 9N7 
Phone:  250 387‐9108 
Fax:  250 387‐7973 

 
Location: 
6th Floor, 800 Johnson Street 
Victoria BC  V8W 9N7 
 
http://www.gov.bc.ca/mah  

 
 
November 2, 2020 
 
Ref:  257671 
 
Catherine Allaway 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Village of New Denver 
Box 40 
New Denver BC  V0G 1S0 
 
Dear Catherine Allaway: 
 
The provincial government understands the fiscal impacts that COVID‐19 has placed on local service 
providers. To help address these challenges, in September the Province of British Columbia announced 
nearly $2 billion in joint federal/provincial spending, including: $540 million for local governments, 
$418 million for community infrastructure, and $1 billion for transit, TransLink and ferries. 
 
The $540 million for local governments was further divided into three funding streams. Two of the 
streams (“Development Services” for $15 million and “Strengthening Communities” for $100 million) 
will be application‐based funding. More information on these funding streams will be forthcoming. 
 
The third stream will provide direct grants to local governments. This funding stream is called the 
“COVID‐19 Safe Restart Grants for Local Governments” and will provide up to $425 million for local 
operations impacted by COVID‐19. This funding will support local governments as they deal with 
increased operating costs and lower revenue due to COVID‐19. It will also ensure local governments can 
continue to deliver the services people depend on in their communities. Eligible costs will include: 

 addressing revenues shortfalls; 

 facility reopening and operating costs; 

 emergency planning and response costs; 

 bylaw enforcement and protective services like fire protection and police; 

 computer and other electronic technology costs (to improve interconnectivity and virtual 
communications); 

 services for vulnerable persons (e.g. persons living with disabilities, mental illness or addictions, 
persons experiencing homelessness or other vulnerabilities); and  

 other related costs. 
 
I am pleased to advise you that New Denver is the recipient of a $323,000 grant under the COVID‐19 
Safe Restart Grant for Local Governments. This amount will be directly transferred to your local 
government in the coming days. 

…/2 

17



 
 
Catherine Allaway 
Page 2 
 
 
Under section 36 of the Local Government Grants Regulation, the amount of the grant to each local 
government is set by Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. The determination of this amount was 
based on a formula that applies to all municipalities. 
 
This formula is based on two components: a flat funding amount and an “adjusted per‐capita” amount.  
The flat amount is $169,000, and the “adjusted per‐capita” amount is $308.34 per adjusted population. 
 
The adjusted population formula is designed to ensure that larger municipalities receive more money 
than smaller ones, but that smaller municipalities receive higher per capita funding than larger ones. 
This is because small municipalities often lack a diverse tax base and the economies‐of‐scale to easily 
restart their operations. 
 
An example of the funding formula (for a municipality of 43,000 people) is provided as an attachment to 
this letter. If you wish, you can apply this formula to your 2018 population of  499 to determine both 
your adjusted population and total funding amount. 2018 population data was used because it is the last 
year in which we have complete financial and demographic data for each municipality.  
 
To ensure full transparency regarding the use of funds, your local government will be required to 
annually report on how it spent this grant. This will be part of your annual financial reporting under 
section 167 of the Community Charter. Your local government will provide a schedule to the audited 
financial statements respecting the amount of funding received, the use of those funds, and the year‐
end balance of unused funds. Your local government must continue to annually report on the use of 
grant money until the funds are fully drawn down. 
 
If you have questions or comments regarding this letter, please feel free to contact Jennifer Richardson, 
Grants Analyst, Local Government Infrastructure and Finance Branch, by email at:  
Jennifer.Richardson@gov.bc.ca, or by phone at: 778 698‐3243. 
 
The provincial government welcomes this opportunity to support COVID‐19 restart and recovery 
throughout British Columbia. We believe that this funding will contribute to the long‐term recovery of 
local governments who are both critical service providers and crucial drivers in the British Columbia 
economy. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Kaye Krishna 
Deputy Minister 
 
Attachment 
 
pc:  Jennifer Richardson, Grants Analyst, Local Government Infrastructure and Finance Branch 
  Colin McClure, Chief Financial Officer, Village of New Denver   

18



 
 
Catherine Allaway 
Page 3 
 
 

Attachment: Example Calculation for a Municipality with 43,000 People 
 

City of Rockridge

Population 43,000

Adjusted Per Capita Funding $308.34 per adjusted population

Flat Funding Amount $169,000

Funding model

A B

C=B‐A D
E = C (up tp 

43,000) F = E x D F

From to Range

Adjustmen

t Ratio

Rockridge 

Pop

Adjusted Pop 

Calc

Adjusted 

Pop

‐             2,000       2,000             1 2,000        = 2,000 x 1 2,000          

2,001         5,000       3,000             0.8 3,000        = 3,000 x 0.8 2,400          

5,001         10,000     5,000             0.6 5,000        = 5,000 x 0.6 3,000          

10,001      20,000     10,000          0.4 10,000      = 10,000 x 0.4 4,000          

20,001      40,000     20,000          0.2 20,000      = 20,000 x 0.2 4,000          

40,001      150,000   110,000        0.1 3,000        = 3,000 x 0.1 300              

150,001    900,000   750,000        0.05 ‐            = 0 x 0.05 ‐              

Sum 43,000      15,700         G=F
Per capita funding $308.34 H

Funding per Adjusted Pop 4,840,938    I=GxH

Flat Funding Amount 169,000       J

Total Funding Amount 5,009,938    K=I+J

Thus, a municipality with a population of 43,000 would have an adjusted population of 15,698.

With per capita funding of $308.34, the funding per adjusted population would $4.84 million.

Plus a flat funding amount of $169,000, the total funding to this municipality would be $5.009M.

The Population data was taken from the Ministry's Local Government Stats System for 2018

(Schedule 201).

Population Range

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local‐governments/facts‐

framework/statistics/statistics

19



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Corporate Officer 

SUBJECT:  Reports for Information 

DATE:  November 6, 2020 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the following reports be received for information: 

• Kyowakai Book Project Update 

• Expression of Interest - CBT Community Wildfire Innovation Grant 

20



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

SUBMITTED BY:  Theresa Tremaine    DATE: November 4, 2020 

   Community Services Coordinator        

SUBJECT:   Kyowakai Book Project Update 

PURPOSE: To update Council with respect to the Kyowakai Book Project. 

 

As the Kyowakai Book Project is nearing its completion, it’s important to update Council as public announcement 

and promotion of the book will take place starting this month.    

The book titled Kyowakai: Memory and Healing in New Denver will be published by the Village of New Denver 

for the Nikkei Internment Memorial Centre (NIMC). This book tells the story of the NIMC, the people who created 

it and the healing it inspired. Part history, part cautionary tale, part companion to the exhibits and gardens at 

the NIMC, this book explores the vision for the centre, elaborates on the interpretive signs that accompany 

displays, and unravels the symbolic meaning of the Peace Garden. The book contains rare photographs and 

stories about wartime, postwar and ongoing experiences of internees and their descendants.  

Scheduled to go to print in mid-November, the book will then be available for sale in early December - just in 

time for the holiday season. In the last few months, the project team which includes local writer Anne 

Champagne, graphic designer John Endo Greenaway and Theresa Tremaine as project coordinator - along with 

former Kyowakai members including Sakaye and Bronwen Hashimoto, Paul Gibbons and Tsuneko Kokubo, and 

Ruby Truly acting as historical advisors - have been working towards finalising this important project.  

Researcher Kyla Fitzgerald has also provided the team with valuable input. The project has been funded by the 

former Kyowakai Society with a $10,000 donation and by the National Association of Japanese Canadians 

(NAJC) with a $5,000 grant.  

Early promotion of the Kyowakai will be announced through this month’s issue of The Bulletin - a monthly 

journal published by the JCCA (The Greater Vancouver Japanese Canadian Citizens’ Association), which is 

available online: http://jccabulletin-geppo.ca/. Books will be available through pre-order and once printed, 

they will be sold at the Village Office as well as stocked at the NIMC Gift Shop next summer.  

Not only will this project help with continuing to tell the story of the Nikkei and honour local history, it will also 

help promote the NIMC and New Denver in the Heritage tourism sector.  

21

http://jccabulletin-geppo.ca/


PAGE 1 OF 1 
 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL  

SUBMITTED BY: Catherine Allaway, CAO     DATE:  November 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Expression of Interest – CBT Community Wildfire Innovation Grant Program 

 

PURPOSE: To update Council regarding an Expression of Interest submitted to CBT 

 

The Village of New Denver has submitted an Expression of Interest to the Columbia Basin Trust (CBT) 

Community Wildfire Innovation Grant Program. The proposed project would see CBT fund the purchase of a 

BurnBoss T24 air curtain burner trailer, which would be used to dispose of wood waste resulting from wildfire 

mitigation fuel reduction activities.  

There are no known units of this type operating in the region, so testing will be performed to evaluate the 

appropriateness of the equipment for municipal purposes. It is anticipated that SIFCo and the Villages of 

Silverton and Slocan will also participate in the equipment testing. Mechanisms for the equitable sharing of 

equipment will be explored as part of this project. Findings will be shared with other local governments.  

There are no cash contributions from the Village of New Denver proposed as part of this project. In kind 

contributions will include Public Works staff time for the testing and evaluation of the unit, as well as some site 

preparation work. Funding for fuel reduction activities from the UBCM Community Resilience Investment 

FireSmart Community Funding & Supports grants will be applied as a contribution towards this project.  

22



 

MINUTES 

SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

 

PRESENT - Councillor John Fyke 

Councillor Colin Moss 

David Everest 

Nadine Raynolds 

Dean Spankie 

Chad Townsend (via Webex) 

Jessica Rayner, Community Planner 

Press: Nil 

Guests: Hal Wright (via Webex) 

 

CALL TO ORDER: - Councillor Fyke called the meeting to order at 1:08 p.m. 

 

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Nil 

ELECTION OF CHAIR: 

 

- Moved by David Everest and seconded that Councillor 

Fyke be appointed as the Chair of the Sustainability 

Advisory Committee. 

CARRIED 

 

 - Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that David 

Everest be appointed as the Vice-Chair of the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee. 

CARRIED 

 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

agenda for the November 2, 2020 Sustainability 

Advisory Committee Meeting be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

Review of Terms of Reference - Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee recommend the 

following be considered by Council regarding the 

Committee’s Terms of Reference: 

- Change of name to ‘100% Renewable Energy 

Advisory Committee’; 

- Replace ‘Village of New Denver’ in Items 1, 2a, and 

2b to ‘New Denver’; and 

- Replace Item 2 with ‘identify and make 

recommendations on ways to support a transition to 

100% renewable energy while being mindful of land 

use, built infrastructure, and economic and social 

conditions.’ 

23



Village of New Denver Minutes – November 2, 2020 Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

CARRIED 

 

Review of Draft West Kootenay 100% 

Renewable Energy Plan 

- Moved by Nadine Raynolds and seconded that the 

following priorities be considered by the Village of New 

Denver to begin local implementation of the West 

Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan: 

 

Transportation Moves: 

- Conduct a survey about travel habits and needs in 

New Denver; and 

- Advocate for electric vehicle and electric bicycle 

incentives at the Provincial and Federal level. 

Building Moves: 

- Work with the Regional District of Central 

Kootenay (RDCK) on the Regional Energy 

Efficiency Program (REEP) for Home Renovations 

toward an approach beneficial to New Denver 

residents, including reducing barriers to use of a 

blower door test for home energy efficiency testing. 

Zero Waste Action: 

- Advocate to the RDCK that the Healthy Community 

Society Organics Diversion Pilot Program be 

supported and expanded; and  

- Advocate for creating a regional composting 

program and bylaws. 

CARRIED 

 

Schedule of Meetings - Moved by Councillor Fyke and Seconded that the 

Committee meet bi-annually in April and October. 

CARRIED 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

meeting be adjourned at 2:56 p.m. 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

MAYOR CASLEY  CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

24



PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL DECISION 

SUBMITTED BY: Catherine Allaway, CAO    DATE:  November 6, 2020 

SUBJECT: Recreation Commission #6 Appointments 

 

PURPOSE: To appoint representatives to Recreation Commission #6 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Tamara Barkowsky be appointed as the Village of New Denver Community Representative to Recreation 

Commission #6; and further, 

That Councillor Gerald Wagner be appointed as the Village of New Denver Council Representative to 

Recreation Commission #6; and further, 

That Councillor John Fyke be appointed as the alternate Village of New Denver Council Representative to 

Recreation Commission #6. 

Ms. Barkowsky, Councillor Wagner and Councillor Fyke will continue in their roles. The alternate position will 

remain open until filled. 

ALTERNATIVES & IMPLICATIONS: 

1.  Do not make any appointments to Recreation Commission #6.  The Village of New Denver will not have 

any representation on the commission. 

2. Make additional changes to RDCK Commission appointments for the coming year. Changes to Council 

appointees can be made at this meeting. If changes to community appointees are desired staff will 

advertise available appointments and bring the matter back to a future Council meeting. 

ANALYSIS: 

A. Background: The Village of New Denver participates in the following RDCK Commissions: 

• Slocan Valley Economic Development Commission (SVEDC)  

• Recreation Commission #6 

• Rosebery Parklands & Trails Commission 

• Winlaw Regional and Nature Park Commission 

 

The respective RDCK Service Establishment Bylaws (and amendments thereto) dictate the composition of 

each Commission, specifying the number of representatives from each participating local government, 

whether these representatives have voting rights, whether alternate appointees are permitted, and 

whether there are any restrictions regarding residency (or other eligibility requirements) that apply to 

representatives.  The Council of the Village of New Denver make recommendations to the RDCK as to 

who will represent the Village on each available Commission position. The term for all Village of New 

Denver appointed representatives to Recreation Commission #6 will expire on December 31, 2020. 

 

B. Discussion:  Tamara Barkowsky wishes to continue serving as the Community Representative from New 

Denver on the Commission. Daniel Hellyer has advised that he does not wish to continue as the alternate 

appointee. Ads were placed in the October 22 and November 5 editions of the Valley Voice seeking  

25



PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

volunteers for available positions and no expressions of interest were received. The alternate appointee 

for the Community Representative position will remain unfilled.  

The Village’s RDCK Director sits on the Commission in a non-voting role. Councillor Wagner represents 

New Denver Council on the Commission, with Councillor Fyke acting as his alternate. Staff does not 

recommend any changes to the Council representative appointments at this time. 

 

C. Legislative Framework:  RDCK Bylaw No. 1273 (amends 783, 1010) 

D. Attachments:  

•  Letter from RDCK (Angela Lund) dated October 22, 2020 
 

E. Council Strategic Priority:  Nil 

F. Communication Strategy:  Nil 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Nil 

26



 

 

Regional District of Central Kootenay 
  

Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC  V1L 5R4 Web: www.rdck.ca 
Telephone (250) 352-6665 Email: info@rdck.bc.ca 
BC Toll Free 1-800-268-7325 Fax: (250) 352-9300 

 

 

 
MUNICIPALITIES:  Cities: Castlegar, Nelson   Town: Creston  Villages: Kaslo, Nakusp, New Denver, Salmo, Silverton and Slocan 
ELECTORAL AREAS:  A-Wynndel/East Shore Kootenay Lake  B C D E F G H-The Slocan Valley IJ-Lower Arrow/Columbia K-The Arrow Lakes 

 

    File No. 0520-10 
 
October 22, 2019 
 
Colin Moss 
c/o Village of New Denver 
Po Box 40 
New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 
 
To Director Moss: 
 
RE: COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS – VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
 
Attached you will find the current listing of appointees on file with the Regional District of Central Kootenay and 
their term expiry dates.  
 
Any terms expiring December 31, 2020 appointments will be required for Board endorsement at the December 10, 
2020 Board meeting. Please forward all new Commission appointee’s names and contact information (address, 
phone & email) to Angela Lund at alund@rdck.bc.ca by November 30, 2020 along with any revisions of the current 
appointees list.  
 

Slocan Lake 
Recreation 
Commission No. 6 

1 appointment required for the term January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2022 
 
1 alternate appointment required for the term January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2022 
 
1 Council appointment required for the term January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 
 
1 alternate Council appointment required for the term January 1, 2021 to December 
31, 2021 

Roseberry Three 
Forks Regional 
Parks Commission 

1 Roseberry Parks Lands Society Rep appointment required for the term January 1, 
2021 to December 31, 2022 

Slocan Valley                  
Economic  
Development  
Commission 

* NO Quorum - the Commission has not renewed appointments due to a Memorandum 
of Understanding between Community Futures Central Kootenay & RDCK  

 
Thank you for your assistance in regards to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Angela Lund 

27

http://www.google.ca/imgres?q=recycling+logo&um=1&hl=en&sa=N&biw=1680&bih=899&tbm=isch&tbnid=mp7V0nhrscyH6M:&imgrefurl=http://www.clker.com/clipart-68601.html&docid=mFDigAsdyku6hM&imgurl=http://www.clker.com/cliparts/c/0/9/4/1282055999653223473recycling%20logo-hi.png&w=600&h=566&ei=W1k2UJ-aK-WFyQHviIHACQ&zoom=1&iact=hc&vpx=183&vpy=360&dur=49&hovh=218&hovw=231&tx=144&ty=142&sig=112683662568513479664&page=1&tbnh=152&tbnw=161&start=0&ndsp=32&ved=1t:429,r:8,s:0,i:125
http://www.rdck.ca/
mailto:info@rdck.bc.ca
mailto:alund@rdck.bc.ca


PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL DECISION 

SUBMITTED BY: Catherine Allaway, CAO    DATE:  November 6, 2020 

SUBJECT: Sustainability Advisory Committee Terms of Reference 

 

PURPOSE: To seek Council direction regarding suggested changes to the Terms of Reference for the 
Sustainability Advisory Committee 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That no changes be made to the Terms of Reference for the Sustainability Advisory 

Committee at this time. 

The Terms of Reference will continue to apply as written. 

ALTERNATIVES & IMPLICATIONS: 

1. Make all the recommended changes to the Terms of Reference. Staff will prepare revised Terms of 

Reference for consideration at the next Council Meeting. 

2. Make other changes to the Terms of Reference. Staff will prepare revised Terms of Reference for 

Council’s consideration at a future meeting.  

ANALYSIS: 

A. Background: The Sustainability Advisory Committee is a select committee of Council, established by 

Council resolution, in accordance with section 142 of the Community Charter. The Terms of Reference 

for the committee were established in April 2019, and appointments were made in May 2019. They held 

their inaugural meeting on November 2, 2020.   

B. Discussion:  The Sustainability Advisory Committee was created to advise Council about issues of 

community sustainability, including the West Kootenay EcoSociety’s plan for a transition to 100% 

renewable energy sources. This broad scope was intended to enable the committee to continue its work 

on sustainability issues after the wrap up of the West Kootenay EcoSociety’s project in December 2020. 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee has recommended that Council consider changing the name to 

the 100% Renewable Energy Committee. This change would not reflect the additional future work (such 

as review of proposed changes to the Official Community Plan or Zoning Bylaw through a sustainability 

lens) that was originally contemplated as a function of the committee. 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee has also recommended that in items 1, 2a and 2b of the Terms of 

Reference “Village of New Denver” be replaced with “New Denver”. This change will have a significant 

impact on the activities of the group. In the original Terms of Reference, the focus was intended to be on 

the municipality’s corporate activities (“corporate activities”) rather than the activities of private 

individuals in the community (“community activities”), as this is the area where Council can have direct 

control and impact. The proposed change could result in many additional issues being referred to the 

committee.  

The Sustainability Advisory Committee also recommends changing the language in item 2d of the Terms 

of Reference to read “…while being mindful…” rather than “…while managing…”. This change will not 

have any significant impact on the functioning of the committee. 

 

28



PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

C. Legislative Framework:  Community Charter s. 142 (Select Committees) and Sustainability Advisory 

Committee Terms of Reference (adopted April 9, 2019) 

D. Attachments:  

•  Sustainability Advisory Committee Terms of Reference (adopted April 9, 2019) 

 

E. Council Strategic Priority:  Nil 

F. Communication Strategy:  Nil 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  The recommendations from the Sustainability Advisory Committee would not 

result in significant hard costs for the Village of New Denver, although additional resources will be required if 

the scope of investigation includes community actions (as well as corporate activities). 

29



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

1) Purpose   

The purpose of the Sustainability Advisory Committee is to make recommendations to Council 

regarding the development and implementation of climate action initiatives, greenhouse gas 

reduction initiatives and the Village of New Denver’s transition to 100% renewable energy sources 

by 2050.    

 

 

2) Scope   

The Sustainability Advisory Committee will: 

a) Work with stakeholders to develop solutions to support the Village of New Denver’s transition 

to 100% renewable energy sources by 2050 and report these to Council; 

b) Provide advice and recommendations to Council regarding energy conservation and demand-

side management to reduce the Village of New Denver’s overall and peak energy needs; 

c) Make recommendations to Council regarding community-wide greenhouse gas emissions 

reduction targets and ways in which the Village of New Denver can inspire and sustain 

community commitment to achieving these targets; 

d) Identify and make recommendations on ways to support a transition to 100% renewable energy 

while sustainably managing land use, built infrastructure, economic growth and social 

conditions; 

e) Provide a forum for dialogue and information-sharing related to the transition to 100% 

renewable energy and greenhouse gas reduction; 

f) Make recommendations to Council regarding opportunities which could foster the expansion of 

renewable energy production, the advancement of energy conservation and renewable energy 

technologies through research, production and practical application in New Denver; 

g) Make recommendations to Council regarding opportunities for increasing local jobs and 

supporting workers to be trained in clean technology and green building, in support of long term 

economic sustainability and a transition away from fossil fuels; 

h) Act as an advisory body to which Council may refer questions, reports, requests or any matter 

related to community sustainability; 

i) Take on additional duties as directed by Council 

 

3) Origin of Work 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is a select committee of Council, established by Council 

resolution, in accordance with section 142 of the Community Charter. 

 

4) Membership   

The Committee shall be composed of: 

a) Two members of the Council of the Village of New Denver, appointed by Council 

b) 3 or 4 members of the New Denver community, appointed by Council 

 

30



 

 

5) Term   

The Committee shall stand until dissolved by Council. 

 

6) Operation of the Committee 

a) Rules of Procedure 

The provisions of Council’s procedure bylaw shall apply to the Committee.   The Committee 

shall, by majority vote, elect a Chair and Vice-Chair at the first meeting held in each calendar 

year.  Quorum shall require a minimum of 3 members, which must include at least one elected 

official from the Village of New Denver. 

 

b) Support Services 

Senior staff and administrative support shall be made available to the Committee on an as-

needed basis.  One staff member must be present for all Committee meetings. 

 

c) Reporting 

Copies of the draft minutes of each Committee meeting shall be presented to Council for 

receipt.  A Council appointee shall report verbally to Council following each Committee meeting. 

  

Adoption date:  April 9, 2019 

  

31



PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

 REPORT TO COUNCIL 

SUBMITTED BY: Jessica Rayner, Community Planner                 DATE: November 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Draft West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan 

PURPOSE:  To provide Council with an update on and recommendations around the development of the 
West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Council direct Village of New Denver staff to provide recommended edits on the draft West Kootenay 100% 
Renewable Energy Plan to the West Kootenay EcoSociety and the Renewable Kootenays Working Group, including 
priorities recommended by the Village of New Denver Sustainability Advisory Committee. 

ALTERNATIVES & IMPLICATIONS: 

1. Do not comment on the draft 100% Renewable Energy Plan. The West Kootenay EcoSociety and 

Renewable Kootenays Working Group will proceed with plan development without further Village of New 

Denver input. 

2. Endorse the draft West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan. The West Kootenay EcoSociety will 

proceed with plan development with New Denver’s support but without further Village of New Denver 

input. 

3. Request that New Denver be removed from the West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan. Village of 

New Denver information and recommendations for a transition to 100% renewable energy by 2050 

would not be included in the West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan. 

ANALYSIS: 

A. Background: Council received an update about the West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan on June 5, 

2020. The West Kootenay EcoSociety and Renewable Kootenays Working Group, consisting of 

representatives from the Regional District of Central Kootenay (RDCK) and the municipalities of New Denver, 

Silverton, Slocan, Kaslo, Castlegar, Nelson, Rossland, and Warfield, have since released a draft West 

Kootenay 100% Energy Plan for review by the public. Public input is being received until November 20, 2020. 

A survey is available online at www.westkootenayrenewableenergy.ca and a community webinar for New 

Denver, Silverton and Slocan will be hosted by the West Kootenay EcoSociety, with elected officials in 

attendance, at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, November 12. Community members can participate in the webinar 

via Zoom or telephone. The format of the webinar will be a presentation about the renewable energy plan 

and process, followed by questions and answers, then an opportunity for participants to identify quick wins 

and discuss priorities for long-term actions. 

The Village of New Denver Sustainability Advisory Committee had its inaugural meeting on Monday, 

November 2 to review the draft West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan and make recommendations 

regarding priorities for the Village of New Denver. Included in this Council Agenda are the minutes of the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee with the following recommendation to Council: 

Moved by Nadine Raynolds and seconded that the following priorities be considered by the Village of New 

Denver to begin local implementation of the West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan: 

 

32

http://www.westkootenayrenewableenergy.ca/


PAGE 2 OF 2 

Transportation Moves: 

- Conduct a survey about travel habits and needs in New Denver; and 

- Advocate for electric vehicle and electric bicycle incentives at the Provincial and Federal level. 

Building Moves: 

- Work with the Regional District of Central Kootenay (RDCK) on the Regional Energy Efficiency 

Program (REEP) for Home Renovations toward an approach beneficial to New Denver residents, 

including reducing barriers to use of a blower door test for home energy efficiency testing. 

Zero Waste Action: 

- Advocate to the RDCK that the Healthy Community Society Organics Diversion Pilot Program be 

supported and expanded; and  

- Advocate for creating a regional composting program and bylaws. 

The above recommendations can be identified at this time as priorities for the Village of New Denver and as 

such recommended for inclusion in the West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan.  

B. Discussion: Staff have not yet reviewed the draft 100% Renewable Energy Plan in detail. If Council is 

supportive, Village of New Denver staff can review the draft plan for content and accuracy and provide input 

to the West Kootenay EcoSociety and Renewable Kootenays Working Group prior to completion and 

adoption of the plan. As an example, New Denver’s Quick Facts on page 4 of the four-page write-up for New 

Denver indicates municipal sewer as a utility infrastructure and should be corrected.  

The recommendations made by the Sustainability Advisory Committee require little staff time or Village of 

New Denver investment but allow the Village of New Denver to begin implementing recommendations 

found within the plan. 

C. Legislative Framework: Nil 

D. Attachments: Nil 

E. Council Strategic Priority: Nil 

F. Communication Strategy: Nil 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Staff time required to review the draft 100% Renewable Energy Plan and 

recommend edits. 

33



PAGE 1 OF 1 
 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL DECISION 

SUBMITTED BY: Catherine Allaway, CAO    DATE:  November 6, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020 

 

PURPOSE: To update the Fire Department Bylaw 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That Village of New Denver Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020 be given first, second 

and third reading.  

 

Final adoption of the proposed bylaw will be scheduled for the November 24, 2020 Council Meeting.  

ALTERNATIVES & IMPLICATIONS: 

1.  Refer the draft bylaw to the Fire Department Committee for review.  A Committee meeting will be 

scheduled and recommendations brought forward to Council. 

2. Request additional changes to the proposed Fire Department Bylaw.  Staff will make amendments to 

the proposed bylaw and bring it back to Council for consideration at a future meeting. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

A. Background: Updates to the Fire Department Bylaw were discussed at the December 12, 2019 Fire 

Department Committee Meeting. Staff has prepared a draft bylaw that reflects these discussions. 

B. Discussion:  The revised bylaw provides section headings for ease of use, and increases the penalty for 

violations from $2,000 to $2,500. It also allows a department member other than the Fire Chief to act as 

the Local Assistant to the Fire Commissioner (LAFC), which is necessary since the Office of The Fire 

Commissioner is not currently offering LAFC training for the new Fire Chief. The revised bylaw clarifies 

the intent to provide emergency medical assistance outside of the First Responder framework. 

C. Legislative Framework:  The proposed bylaw will replace Village of New Denver Fire Bylaw No. 575, 2004 

D. Attachments:  

•  Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020 
 

E. Council Strategic Priority:  Review and update of Fire Department bylaw to clarify services provided by 

the Fire Department was identified as a 2020 Priority in the Village’s most recent Annual Report. 

F. Communication Strategy:  Nil 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  There are no hard costs associated with the adoption of the proposed bylaw. 

34



THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
BYLAW NO. 731, 2020 

 

Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020   PAGE 1 OF 5 
 

************************************************************************************* 

A bylaw to continue the operation and regulation of a fire department. 

 

NOW  THEREFORE,  the Council of the Village of New  Denver,  in  open  meeting  assembled,  enacts  as  

follows: 

1. CITATION 

1.1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of New Denver Fire Department 

Bylaw No. 731, 2020”. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

2.1. In this bylaw: 

Administrator means the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) of the Village of New 

Denver  

Apparatus means any vehicle provided with machinery, devices, equipment or 

materials for fire protection and assistance response as well as vehicles used to 

transport fire fighters or supplies; 

Council means the Council of the Village of New Denver; 

Equipment means any tools, contrivances, devices or materials used by the Fire 

Department to combat an incident or other emergency; 

 Fire Chief means the Member appointed by Council, as head of the Fire Department; 

Fire Protection means all aspects of fire safety including but not limited to fire 

prevention, fire fighting or suppression, pre-fire planning, fire investigation, public 

education and information, training or other staff development and advising; 

Incident means a fire or a situation where a fire or explosion is imminent; 

Mayor means the Mayor of the Village of New Denver; 

Member means any person or Officer that is duly appointed by the Fire Chief or 

Council as a member of the Fire Department; 

Officer means a Member appointed by Council and given specific authority to assist 

the Fire Chief in their duties 

3. ADMINISTRATION 

3.1. Council shall determine the remuneration for all members of the Fire Department. 

3.2. The Fire Chief shall be appointed by a resolution of Council. 

3.3. The Fire Chief may recommend to Council the appointment of a qualified person or 

persons as a Deputy Chief or Deputy Chiefs for the Department. 

3.3.1. The Deputy Chief shall report to the Fire Chief and carry out the orders of the 

Fire Chief and, in the absence of the Fire Chief, has all the power and shall 

perform the duties of the Chief. 

3.4. Other Officers and Members, as the Fire Chief deems necessary, may be appointed 

by Council 

35



THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
BYLAW NO. 731, 2020 

 

Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020   PAGE 2 OF 5 
 

3.5. A person is qualified to be appointed a volunteer Member of the Department for fire 

fighting duties who: 

i. Is of legal age; 

ii. Is of good character; 

iii. Passed tests as may be required by the Fire Chief; and 

iv. Is medically fit to be a member. 

 

3.6. A person appointed as a volunteer Member of the Department for fire fighting duties 

shall be on probation for a period of at least three months during which period he 

shall take such special training and examinations as may be required by the Fire 

Chief. 

3.7. A person is qualified to be appointed as a Junior Volunteer Member of the 

Department for training purposes only, who: 

i. Is at least 16 years of age; 

ii. Has not reached 18 years of age; 

iii. Is of good character; 

iv. Has passed tests as may be required by the Fire Chief; and 

v. Is medically fit to be a member. 

 

3.8. A Junior Volunteer member is authorized to attend the scene of an incident, on the 

direction of the Fire Chief or designate, for assistance purposes only but is not 

authorized to fight fires. 

4. DUTIES & AUTHORITY OF THE FIRE CHIEF 

4.1. The Fire Chief may appoint Officers to act as Fire Chief on their behalf. 

4.2. The Fire Chief shall have the management, control and supervision of the Fire 

Department and the care, custody and control of all buildings, apparatus and 

equipment of the Fire Department and shall be directly responsible to the 

Administrator for efficient management of the Fire Department and the condition of 

all buildings, apparatus and equipment under their control. 

4.2.1. The Fire Chief, or in their absence the senior ranking member present, shall 

have control, direction and management of all Fire Department apparatus, 

equipment and manpower assigned to an incident and where a member is in 

charge they shall continue to act until relieved by a senior officer.  

4.3. The Fire Chief may from time to time make such rules and regulations for the proper 

and efficient administration and operation of the Fire Department and for the 

discipline of its members and may vary, alter or repeal such rules and regulations as 

they shall from time to time deem fit and necessary. 

4.3.1. All members of the Fire Department shall comply with all rules and 

regulations from time to time made pursuant to Section 4.3 and any failure to 

comply with the said rules and regulations by a member of the Fire 

Department shall be dealt with and disposed of by the Fire Chief in such a 

manner as he shall deem fit. 

4.4. The Fire Chief or their designate shall take all proper measures for the prevention, 

control and extinguishment of fires and for the protection of life and property and 

exercise the powers and duties imposed upon them by the Fire Services Act. 

36



THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
BYLAW NO. 731, 2020 

 

Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020   PAGE 3 OF 5 
 

4.5. The Fire Chief shall be required to carry out all fire protection and assistance 

response activities and such other activities as Council directs including but not 

limited to: 

i. Rescue operations 

ii. Medical emergencies 

iii. Other incidents 

iv. Pre-fire planning 

v. Disaster planning 

vi. Public services 

4.6. The Fire Chief or any members of the Fire Department authorized by Council, may at 

any reasonable time enter any premise for the purpose of fire prevention 

inspections. 

4.7. The Fire Chief or any member of the Fire Department authorized by Council may 

require an owner or occupier of real property to undertake any actions for the 

purpose of removing or reducing any thing or condition that person considers is a fire 

hazard or increases the danger of fire. 

4.8. The Fire Chief or any other member in charge at a fire is empowered to cause a 

building, structure, or thing to be pulled down, demolished or otherwise removed if 

they deem it necessary to prevent the spread of fire to other buildings, structures or 

things. 

4.9. The Fire Chief or any other member in charge at an incident is empowered to enter 

premises or property where the incident occurred and to cause any member, 

apparatus, or equipment of the fire Department to enter, as they deem necessary, in 

order to combat, control or deal with the incident. 

4.10. The Fire Chief or the member in charge at an incident is empowered to enter, pass 

through or over buildings or property adjacent to an incident and to cause members 

of the Fire Department and the apparatus and equipment of the Fire Department to 

enter or pass through or over buildings or property, where they deem it necessary to 

gain access to the incident or to protect any person or property. 

4.11. The Fire Chief or the member in charge of an incident may request persons who are 

not members to assist in removing furniture, goods and merchandise from any 

building on fire or in danger thereof and in guarding and securing same and in 

demolishing a building or structure at or near the fire or other incident. 

4.12. The Fire Chief or the member in charge of an incident is empowered to commandeer 

privately owned equipment which they consider necessary to deal with an incident 

4.13. The Fire Chief, or the member in charge at an incident may at their discretion 

establish boundaries or limits and keep persons from entering the area within the 

prescribed boundaries or limits unless authorized by the Fire Chief or member in 

charge. 

4.13.1. The Fire Chief of the member in charge at an incident may request peace officers 

to enforce restrictions on persons entering within the boundaries or limits outlined 

in Section 4.13 

4.14. The Fire Chief may obtain assistance from other officials of the municipality as they 

deem necessary in order to discharge their duties and responsibilities under this 

bylaw.  

37



THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
BYLAW NO. 731, 2020 

 

Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020   PAGE 4 OF 5 
 

4.15. The Fire Chief shall provide a Fire Department Report to Council on an annual basis. 

5. REGULATIONS & PROHIBITIONS 

5.1. No persons shall enter the boundaries or limits of an area prescribed in accordance 

with Section 4.13 unless they have been authorized to enter by the Fire Chief or 

member in charge. 

5.2. No person at an incident shall impeded, obstruct or hinder a member of the Fire 

Department or other person assisting or acting under the direction of the Fire Chief 

or the member in charge.  

5.3. No person shall damage or destroy Fire Department apparatus or equipment. 

5.4. No person at an incident shall drive a vehicle over any equipment without permission 

of the Fire Chief or member in charge. 

5.5. No person shall falsely represent themselves as a Fire Department member. 

5.6. No person shall obstruct or otherwise interfere with access roads or streets or other 

approaches to any fire incident, fire hydrant, cistern or body of water designated for 

fire fighting purposes. 

5.7. The Fire Department shall not respond to a call with respect to a fire or emergency 

outside the municipal limits except: 

i. With permission from the Administrator or Mayor; or 

ii. For emergencies where response is on behalf of Emergency Management BC or 

the BC Wildfire Service; or 

iii. By the express authorization of a written contract or agreement providing for 

the supply of fire fighting and assistance response services outside the 

established boundaries. 

6. PENALTY 

6.1. Every person who violates any of the provisions of this bylaw, or who suffers or 

permits any act or thing to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the 

provisions of this bylaw, or who neglects to do or refrains from doing anything 

required to be done by any of the provisions of this bylaw, or who does any act or 

thing or omits  any act or thing thus violating any of the provisions of this bylaw, shall 

be deemed to have committed an offense, and upon a summary conviction is liable 

to imprisonment for a term of not more than six (6) months or to a fine of not more 

than two thousand, five hundred dollars ($2,500) or to both fine and imprisonment.  

7. REPEAL 

7.1. Village of New Denver Fire Bylaw No. 575, 2004 is hereby repealed.  

8. GENERAL 

8.1. Any enactment referred to herein is a reference to an enactment of British Columbia 

and regulations thereto, as amended, revised, consolidated or replaced from time to 

time. 

8.2. If any part, section, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this bylaw is for any reason 

held to be invalid by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid 

portion shall be severed and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity 

of the remainder which shall continue in full force and effect and be construed as if 

the bylaw had been adopted without the invalid portion. 

38



THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW DENVER 
BYLAW NO. 731, 2020 

 

Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020   PAGE 5 OF 5 
 

9. EFFECTIVE DATE 

9.1. This bylaw shall take effect upon adoption. 

      

 

READ A FIRST TIME this _____day of _____, 2020. 

 

READ A SECOND TIME this _____day of _____, 2020. 

 

READ A THIRD TIME this _____day of _____, 2020. 

 

RECONSIDERED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this _____day of _____, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

MAYOR  CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

Certified to be a true copy of “Village of New Denver Fire Department Bylaw No. 731, 2020". 

 

 

 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

 

 
 

39


	Binder1
	agenda 2020 11 10,pdf
	minutes 2020 10 27 DRAFT
	minutes 2020 10 30 COTW DRAFT
	ASTA for pkg
	memo - CFI Nov 10
	from SLSS_Redacted
	from CBT COR intake open
	from MMAH 257671 New Denver Signed Final Restart grant
	memo - RFI Nov 10
	memo_Kyowakai Book Update
	memo - CBT Community Wildfire Innovation EOI
	SAC minutes 2020 10 21 DRAFT

	memo - 2021 RDCK Commission appointments
	Pages from ND_Appt_Request_Ltr-FINAL
	memo - SAC TOR
	Sustainability Advisory Committee TOR
	memo - West Kootenay 100% Renewable Energy Plan
	memo - fire dept bylaw 731, 2020
	bylaw no. 731 2020 Fire Department DRAFT
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



